MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING

of the

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM

Madison, Wisconsin

Held in room 1820 Van Hise Hall Friday, September 8, 2000 9:00 a.m.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 1		
REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD	1	
RESOLUTION OF APPRECIATION: CHANCELLOR JOHN KERRIGAN	1	
REPORT ON THE JULY 21 st meeting of the Higher Educational Aids Board	3	
REPORT ON THE SEPTEMBER 6 th MEETING OF THE HOSPITAL AUTHORITY BOARD	3	
Additional Items		
Committee for the UW-La Crosse Chancellor Search	3	
Economic Summit	3	
Priorities from Regent Retreat		
Budget Process	4	
Presentation of Regents Teaching Excellence Awards		
REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE SYSTEM	9	
New Wisconsin Economy Investment Plan	9	
PRE-COLLEGE PROGRAMS		
WELCOME TO RICK WELLS, UW-OSHKOSH CHANCELLOR DESIGNATE		
BUDGET WEB SITE		
WIAC RECORDS BOOK		
LEARNING ANYTIME, ANYWHERE PARTNERSHIPS		
WISCONSIN INNOVATION CENTER'S 20 th ANNIVERSARY		
UW-SUPERIOR FOUNDATION FELLOWSHIPS		
CONTINUED GROWTH AT UW-MADISON RESEARCH PARK		
PROTECTION OF HUMAN RESEARCH SUBJECTS AT UW-MADISON		
PUBLICATION BY SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT THIBODEAU	11	
REPORT OF THE EDUCATION COMMITTEE	12	
Annual Report on Fall 1999-00 Undergraduate Drop Rates	12	
UW-Oshkosh: Authorization to Recruit: Provost and Vice Chancellor		
UW Colleges: Authorization to Recruit: Provost and Vice Chancellor		
UW-Eau Claire: Revision to Faculty Personnel Rules		
UW-Milwaukee: Revision to Faculty Personnel Rules UW-Madison: Appointment of Named Professors		
UW-Stout: Appointment of Named Professor		
UW-La Crosse: Appointment of Wisconsin Distinguished Professor		
2000-01 EDUCATION COMMITTEE AGENDA		

REPORT OF THE INTERIM SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT FOR ACADEMIC AFFAIRS	14
Presentation: Technology and Teacher Education	14
Intention to Recruit for Academic Deans	15
NEW PROGRAM AUTHORIZATIONS	15
REVISED MISSION STATEMENT, UW-STOUT	
REPORT OF THE PHYSICAL PLANNING AND FUNDING COMMITTEE	16
UW-La Crosse: Authority to Construct Hutchinson Hall Telecommunications Cabling Project	
UW-Madison: Authority to Construct a Memorial Union Kitchen Modernization Project	
UW-Madison: Authority to Increase the Budget of the University Ridge Golf Course Clubhouse	
UW-Stevens Point: Authority to Purchase Student Residence Hall Room Furnishings	
UW-Superior: Authority to Convey Land to Superior	
UW-Whitewater: Authority to Construct a Williams Center Athletic Department and HPERC Offices Remodeling Project	
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT VICE PRESIDENT	
REPORT OF THE BUSINESS AND FINANCE COMMITTEE	.Stats.
Regent Policy on Senior Auditors	
Blue Cross/Blue Shield: Acceptance of Funds	
Blue Cross/Blue Shield Appointment of Eight of Nine Members of an Advisory and Oversight Comm	
UW-Platteville: 2000-01 Operating Budget Request Increase Parking Rates	
UW-Milwaukee: License Agreement with: Voicestream PCS II Corporation Telecorp Realty, L.L.C. Telecorp communications Inc., PrimeCo Personal Communications, Limited Partnership, d/b/a/Veriz/	., by
Wireless and United States Cellular Operating Company d/b/a/ U.S. Cellular	
QUARTERLY UPDATE	23
SERVICE BASED PRICING	23
Trust Funds	24
REPORT OF THE VICE PRESIDENT	24
REPORT ON HUMAN SUBJECTS	
Commendation to UW-Madison on Results of Federal Audit on Human Subjects	
EXECUTIVE SESSION	25
Appointment to UW-Milwaukee Board of Visitors	25
University of Wisconsin System: Approval of Salary: Vice President for Finance	

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING

of the

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN SYSTEM

Madison, Wisconsin

Held in room 1820 Van Hise Hall Friday, September 8, 2000 9:00 a.m.

- President Smith presiding -

- PRESENT: Regents Alexander, Axtell, Barry, Benson, Boyle, Brandes, Gottschalk, Gracz, James, Krutsch, Marcovich, Mohs, Olivieri, Randall, Schneiders and Smith
- ABSENT: Regent De Simone

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

The minutes of the August 25, 2000, meeting were approved as distributed.

- - -

REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE BOARD

Resolution of Appreciation: Chancellor John Kerrigan

Regent Brandes read the following resolution and moved its adoption by the Board of Regents. The motion was adopted by acclamation with a round of applause. Resolution 8202: WHEREAS, John E. Kerrigan has served as Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh with distinction and skill since 1990; and

> WHEREAS, under Chancellor Kerrigan's leadership, UW-Oshkosh has accomplished many successes throughout the university, including:

- Significantly increasing the level of private contributions to the University's Foundation;
- Building strong relationships and partnerships with the University's extended community, and enhancing ties between the University and vital external partners;
- Helping the University to receive the highest possible accreditation from the North Central Association, while also ensuring that all professional colleges achieved accreditation by the appropriate national organization;
- Encouraging the University to have a broader international focus and vision, through the establishment of a grants program and other cooperative partnerships with foreign institutions;
- Modernizing the campus' physical plant, with significant capital projects now underway; and
- Improving the level of faculty, staff, and student access to new and emerging educational technologies; and

WHEREAS, Chancellor Kerrigan's efforts to raise the profile of UW-Oshkosh's significant impact upon the economic, social, and cultural well-being of the Fox River Valley and Wisconsin have helped to ensure state budgetary support of UW-Oshkosh and the entire UW System; and

WHEREAS, for 10 years, John has handled the dynamic challenges of a vital and growing comprehensive university with wisdom, courage, stewardship, welltimed humor, and a firm commitment to building a more diverse campus population and a climate in which all students, faculty and staff members can achieve their full potential; THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System commends John E. Kerrigan for his successful tenure and meritorious service as Chancellor, extending sincere gratitude and best wishes to him upon his retirement.

Noting that Chancellor Kerrigan had spoken at the August 25 Board meeting, Regent President Smith indicated that he and President Lyall had the opportunity to attend a special event in Chancellor Kerrigan's honor in Oshkosh the week following that meeting.

_

<u>Report on the July 21st meeting of the Higher Educational Aids Board</u>

A written report on the July 21 meeting of the Higher Educational Aids Board was provided to the Regents.

_

<u>Report on the September 6th meeting of the Hospital Authority Board</u>

The Regents received a written report on the September 6 meeting of the Hospital Authority Board.

_

Additional Items

Committee for the UW-La Crosse Chancellor Search

Regent President Smith announced the following appointments to the Regent Committee for the UW-La Crosse Chancellor Search: Regent Barry, Chair; Regent Alexander; Regent Axtell; and Regent Schneiders.

Economic Summit

Reporting on plans for the Economic Summit, Regent President Smith introduced Laurie Dies, who had been hired as coordinator for the Summit. A graduate of UW-Madison with a degree in economics, Ms. Dies had worked in the Legislature for 17 years, 14 of those as Executive Assistant to Senator Brian Rude. Noting that work in preparation for the Economic Summit has been ongoing since February, Regent Smith reported that there is much enthusiasm and a great deal of activity taking place, that regional and statewide committees are meeting, that hundreds of people are involved, that white papers are being produced, and that an extensive mailing list is being developed. Planning for the summit, Regent Smith emphasized, involves a cross section of the state, with a wide net being cast in terms of people involved in the process. The Economic Summit will be held on November 29, 30, and December 1 at the Midwest Express Center in Milwaukee.

Priorities from Regent Retreat

Regent President Smith reported that a list of priorities for the coming year had been distilled from items submitted by Regents and Chancellors at the August 24 Regent retreat. The list includes: Development of the UW role in the Wisconsin Economy; student access; management flexibility and accountability; the student experience, including diversity, studying abroad, and languages; technology; teacher education; funding and fundraising; and tuition and financial aid. The Regents have been asked to prioritize those items and to work within their standing committees to select certain of them to work on in the coming year.

Budget Process

Regent President Smith indicated that he has asked UW System staff to work with the Department of Administration staff over the next several months on details relating to the Department's request on prioritizing budget items. This, he noted, is part of the normal process of putting together a biennial budget.

Presentation of Regents Teaching Excellence Awards

Noting the Board's strong commitment to teaching excellence, Regent President Smith indicated that the Regent Teaching Awards are presented annually to two outstanding teachers and one outstanding department in the UW System.

President Lyall noted that this is the ninth year in which the Board has sponsored these awards, which are prestigious recognitions of outstanding teaching. This year, she announced, funding of the awards comes in part from the Paul Schilling Memorial Fund. A former Regent and Regent President, Mr. Schilling was particularly interested in supporting excellence in teaching. Regent Olivieri, Chair of the Regent Committee that selected the award recipients, stated that the awards are one way in which the Regents recognize the centrality of learning and teaching to the university's endeavors. Regent Olivieri thanked the members of his committee: Regent Alexander, Regent Gracz, and Regent Mohs.

Noting his personal interest in recognizing great teaching, Regent Olivieri recalled that, as an undergraduate student, he encountered a professor who had a profound influence on his life. In becoming reacquainted years later, the professor shared with Regent Olivieri a lecture in which he questioned the value of what he had accomplished as a teacher. Noting the professor's valuable impact on his life, Regent Olivieri emphasized the importance of thanking excellent teachers at every opportunity and asked all those present to take time to express gratitude to teachers who had similarly affected the course of their lives.

Presenting the first award to Joan Thron, Associate Professor of Education and Humanistic Studies at UW-Green Bay, Regent Olivieri indicated that Professor Thron has taught at that university since 1973. She has been instrumental in revising the curriculum of the Education and Humanistic Studies Department, and she is a nationally known advocate of children's literacy as well as an expert on children's literature. Throughout her career, she has developed a series of exemplary partnerships with local schools, many of whose teachers she has trained and mentored.

One of her colleagues noted that she "models an unwavering focus on learning as a way of living and thinking" and she invites her students to share that focus. Her boldest initiative was development of a course of study called "Integrating the Language Arts", which combines four previously separate courses in children's literature and methods of instruction in reading and writing into one 12-credit course. The expanded course becomes a forum for exploring theories and research, materials and methods within the context of understandings about how humans become literate. Every week, she accompanies her students to schools and together they explore these questions. Instead of a final exam, students make a professional conference presentation.

In support of Dr. Thron's nomination for this award, her students cited her passion for children's literature, for children's learning and for the development of her students into thoughtful and compassionate teachers. One letter, written by three members of the same family, all of whom had studied under Professor Thron, affirms that "she has made us fall in love over and over again with the art of teaching."

As a lover of language and story, Professor Thron said notice of this award brought to mind Joseph Campbell's observation that people tell the same story over and over in infinite variation. From Odysseus to Harry Potter, the pattern is similar - an arduous journey filled with danger and adventure, and finally completed successfully. These characters, she observed, have certain qualities, including patience, perseverance, and a large measure of good fortune. Such good fortune, she noted, often arrives in groups of thee, and so it had been for her. Paying tribute to the elements of her good fortune, she cited first her extraordinary colleagues. "Together we plan, try, regroup, plan again - I am so fortunate in my colleagues." Second, it was her good fortune to have easy access to the Cooperative Children's Book Center on the UW-Madison campus. The Center's excellent collection and programs allows her to keep abreast of new children's books and to grow professionally. Third, she cited her remarkable students, many of them the first in their families to attend college.

Finally, she remarked that it has been her good fortune to spend her teaching life in the UW System, where the Board and other leaders "are convinced that teaching and learning matter and support these efforts that we make, believing that the State of Wisconsin is a better place because of it."

Regent Olivieri presented the second teaching excellence award to Charles Young, Associate Professor of Music at UW-Stevens Point, where he has taught since 1994. Professor Young is Chair of the Music Theory and Composition Program and Director of the Computer Music Center, a computer lab he designed and founded as a means of integrating cutting-edge technology into teaching. He also invented the Portable Practice Unit, a critical listening technology that students use to assess themselves during practice, rehearsals, private lessons and classes. These technologies have created an entirely new system by which to teach and assess student progress.

Professor Young has been involved in restructuring more than 30 music theory courses, including making composition a required course for all undergraduate majors. He also developed an Acoustics course called "The Physics of Sound" which is a team-taught, multi-disciplinary course involving faculty in music, communicative disorders, psychology and physics.

Professor Young wrote the following concerning his philosophy of teaching: "I must pay close attention to each student so that I can cultivate their learning skills accordingly. Like the gardener, I must provide the proper nutrients so that each student will bloom into a learner capable of learning anything. That is why when I'm asked what do you teach, I prefer to answer 'students' rather than 'music'."

His impact on students is revealed by this comment: "Don't let this man leave UW-Stevens Point. He's too valuable to our education."

Among recognitions for his outstanding work, Dr. Young has been named the Wisconsin CASE Professor of the Year by the Carnegie Foundation; he has received numerous grants to further implement and disseminate his teaching innovations; and has a national and international reputation as a composer of award-winning pieces.

In his acceptance remarks, Dr. Young credited his family and particularly his spouse, Jennifer, for valuable contributions to his success. There had, he noted, been educators in his family continuously since 1895.

Professor Young expressed appreciation to the UW-Stevens Point faculty and staff for making it possible for him to teach as he prefers. The campus environment is one that encourages use of technology, innovative programs, taking risks and experimenting with new ideas. He thanked Chancellor George, Provost Meyer, and others who nurture an environment in which innovative teaching can flourish.

He also expressed appreciation to the staff of the Office of Professional and Instructional Development. He especially appreciated the Wisconsin Teaching Fellows program from which he had learned a great deal about how to teach and learn.

In addition, he thanked his students for having taught him how to teach. Lessons learned from his students include:

- 1) Talent is overrated as a key to success. Hard work and commitment are just as important.
- 2) Teaching people is more important than teaching the subject.
- 3) Learning is always taking place whether or not a student is in the classroom.
- 4) Students are more willing to take risks when they see the teacher taking risks.
- 5) Students want to know how much a teacher cares more than how much a teacher knows.
- 6) Students live up to expectations placed before them.
- 7) The quality of what is taught is more important than the quantity.
- 8) All students have preconceived notions, some of which must be replaced.
- 9) Process and product work best when linked together.
- 10) Ways of teaching must be tailored to the individual student.
- 11) Students will respect those who respect them.
- 12) More is learned by failing than by succeeding.

Regent Alexander presented the third award to the UW Colleges Department of Geography and Geology, represented by its former Chair, Professor Catherine Helgeland, who had won an individual Regent Teaching Award in 1997.

Like other departments in the UW Colleges, Regent Alexander observed, the Department of Geography and Geology is composed of individuals spread across 13 campuses. This means there is a lack of daily face-to-face contact among members, and they are able to meet in person only two or three times a year. Much of their business must be conducted by teleconference and by e-mail.

Given this physical separateness, he pointed out, it is all the more impressive that the department members have succeeded in creating a cohesive community of teacherscholars whose common goal is to promote and foster excellence in teaching. The departmental mission emphasizes: 1) Critical thinking skills to make students lifelong learners; 2) continuous professional development and collegial support for faculty and staff; and 3) disseminating geographic understanding to the broader public in communities outside the university.

Students cite the faculty's ability to make geography accessible, interesting and fun. They also appreciate the availability of faculty members to meet with students and discuss their questions or concerns.

Stating that the Department takes professional development of its faculty very seriously, Regent Alexander indicated that new hires are based on the premise of teaching excellence and that half of all merit evaluations are based on teaching effectiveness. It is no surprise then, he noted, that the Department is filled with award-winning teachers.

The Department has worked proactively to improve transfer between the Colleges and 4-year institutions. Faculty have formed an assessment committee to document learning outcomes, and they have engaged in initiatives to further the international understanding and experience of their students. They also offer courses on the Web and via compressed video. For example, faculty member Jim Brey of UW-Fox Valley, in conjunction with Joe Moran of UW-Green Bay and the American Meteorological Society, has developed a nationally recognized, Web-based course in meteorology which has been purchased by universities across the country.

Another accomplishment of the Department was organization of GeoMeet, a system-wide meeting of earth scientists first held in Baraboo in 1999 to spend time as a community of teacher-scholars discussing teaching excellence and student learning. Such was its success that a second GeoMeet was held this year, and the program is considered a model for development of other system-wide consortial programming.

In conclusion, Regent Alexander noted that former Regent Paul Schilling had a special place in his heart for the UW Colleges. It is particularly fitting, he observed, that this award be financed in part by the fund established in Mr. Schilling's memory.

Accepting the award on behalf of the Department of Geography and Geology, Professor Catherine Helgeland noted that a department in the UW Colleges is composed of people who teach in a particular discipline on all 13 campuses and that this presents unusual challenges with respect to conducting meetings. Like any other faculty, she indicated, faculty of the Colleges have a responsibility for teaching, for research and scholarly activity and for service to the department, campus, community and discipline. In the UW Colleges, the primary mission is teaching, and that mission is taken very seriously.

Referring to an e-mail from a colleague in the Department, she indicated that he made three important points about teaching in the Department of Geography and Geology. First, the teaching mission is the top priority. Second, everyone in the department helps everyone else, working together as a learning community to improve continuously. Third, the result is students who are well-prepared to cope with a changing, globalizing world.

Professor Helgeland expressed appreciation for the support the Department receives from throughout the UW System, beginning with the UW Colleges' central administration, which has funded additional time for the department members to work together; the Office of Professional and Instructional Development, which also has provided such funding and which sponsors annual Faculty Colleges; and the Board of Regents which has supported excellent teaching through these awards. "I think the fact that these awards have been made for years," she said, "tells our faculty and the UW that the Regents value teaching, and that is a very strong message that we have heard loud and clear and that we appreciate."

In considering what might be done with the award money, Dr. Helgeland reported that department members thought first in terms of funding field experiences, and then about earmarking the money for junior faculty to attend and present at conferences. However, there was another idea that she thought would carry the day, and that was to use the money to start a fund, to add money every year, and use the interest to fund scholarships for students, especially majors in the department. This, she commented, "is a wonderful idea because everything these awards are about, everything that the faculty and staff in the Department of Geography and Geology are about - are the students."

- - -

REPORT OF THE PRESIDENT OF THE SYSTEM

New Wisconsin Economy Investment Plan

Noting that the past summer had been a busy one, President Lyall reported that the Board and Chancellors worked hard on a new brain gain investment plan that outlines the way the UW can help sustain economic growth in Wisconsin. This will be followed by an Economic Summit to be held in Milwaukee this fall.

Pre-College Programs

It was reported by President Lyall that over 4,000 pre-college students benefited from summer programs on UW campuses, where they were given a glimpse of the excitement of learning and academic skills needed to make their dreams come true.

Welcome to Rick Wells, UW-Oshkosh Chancellor Designate

President Lyall introduced and welcomed Rick Wells, who will take office as UW-Oshkosh Chancellor on October 1.

Budget Web Site

President Lyall reported that the UW has a new budget Web site: <u>www.wisconsin.edu/budget</u>

-

WIAC Records Book

A copy of the WIAC Records Book and a conference pass were provided to the Regents. President Lyall noted that UW teams did very well last year and that an exciting season is anticipated.

_

Learning Anytime, Anywhere Partnerships

It was announced by President Lyall that the UW System has been awarded \$1 million to develop a "Learning Anytime, Anywhere Partnership" program that will serve migrant farm worker families in Wisconsin by offering on-line courses, mentoring and career counseling at summer camps located near UW campuses and Wisconsin food companies. A side benefit will be training of UW faculty in migrant culture and the needs of migrant workers and students. Eventually, the Wisconsin model will be replicated in other states. Partners in this innovative project are: UW-Stevens Point, UW-Extension, UW-Oshkosh, UW-La Crosse, UW Colleges, Midwest Food Processors Association, and United Migrant Opportunity Services, Inc. Noting that this is a further step in the effort to address Wisconsin's labor shortage and to build opportunities for students, President Lyall congratulated Sal Carranza, of the UW System Office of Multicultural Affairs, for developing this project and obtaining funding for it.

Wisconsin Innovation Center's 20th Anniversary

President Lyall congratulated the Wisconsin Innovation Center, at UW-Whitewater, which is celebrating its 20th anniversary of providing new product assessment, patent assistance and business advice to Wisconsin entrepreneurs. The Innovation Center is supported by a number of partners, including the US Patent and Trademark Office, UW-Extension Small Business Development Centers, the Wisconsin Manufacturing UW-Extension Partnership, and the US Small Business Administration. Over the years, the Innovation Center has evaluated 6,250 new product ideas and helped 2,000 Wisconsin entrepreneurs get started in business in this state.

UW-Superior Foundation Fellowships

It was reported by President Lyall that the UW-Superior Foundation is supporting Foundation Fellowships that enable undergraduates to work with faculty and staff on projects of importance to the university as a whole. These grants, she said, give all involved a broader sense of the campus and its role in the Superior community. They also are a tribute to the big difference a modest amount of money can make in providing innovative opportunities for students and faculty to work together.

Continued Growth at UW-Madison Research Park

President Lyall reported that the Research Park is booming with spin-offs from innovations developed by UW-Madison faculty and labs. This summer work was started to double the amount of business incubator space by expanding the MGE Innovation Center by about 50,000 square feet.

_

Protection of Human Research Subjects at UW-Madison

Commending UW-Madison for an excellent audit report by the UW Office for Human Research Protection, President Lyall noted that the report lauded the campus for "a significant institutional commitment to the protection of human subjects" and "a culture of respect for the IRB process". This audit stands out from those of other research universities, which have resulted in suspension of federal funding and research activities. UW-Madison, she stated, deserves great credit for its highly ethical research processes.

Publication by Senior Vice President Thibodeau

President Lyall reported that Senior Vice President Gary Thibodeau has published the 14th edition of his <u>Anatomy and Physiology</u> textbook, which is the most widely used anatomy text in the world.

- - -

REPORT OF THE EDUCATION COMMITTEE

The Committee's report was presented by Regent Brandes, Chair.

Regent Brandes presented Resolutions 8203-8210, which had been approved unanimously by the Education Committee and moved their adoption by the Board of Regents as consent agenda items. The motion was seconded by Regent Axtell and carried unanimously.

Annual Report on Fall 1999-00 Undergraduate Drop Rates

Resolution 8203: That, upon recommendation of the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the Board of Regents accepts the Annual Report on 1999-00 Undergraduate Drop Rates for submission to the Joint Committee on Finance.

UW-Oshkosh: Authorization to Recruit: Provost and Vice Chancellor

Resolution 8204: That, upon recommendation of the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-Oshkosh and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the Chancellor be authorized to recruit for a Provost and Vice Chancellor, at a salary within the 2000-01 Regent Salary Range.

UW Colleges: Authorization to Recruit: Provost and Vice Chancellor

Resolution 8205: That, upon recommendation of the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin Colleges and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the Chancellor be authorized to recruit for a Provost and Vice Chancellor, at a salary within the 2000-01 Regent Salary Range.

UW-Eau Claire: Revision to Faculty Personnel Rules

Resolution 8206: That, upon recommendation of the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-Eau Claire and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the revisions to the UW-Eau Claire Faculty and Academic Staff Personnel Policies and Procedures be approved.

UW-Milwaukee: Revision to Faculty Personnel Rules

Resolution 8207: That, upon recommendation of the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the revisions to the UW-Milwaukee Faculty Policies and Procedures be approved.

UW-Madison: Appointment of Named Professors

Resolution 8208: That, upon recommendation of the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-Madison and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the following named professorships be approved:

John W. Suttie Dept. of Biochemistry	Katherine Berns Van Donk Steenbock Professor in Nutrition (effective July 1, 2000);
Byron E. Shafer Dept. of Political Science	Glenn B. and Cleone Orr Hawkins Chair (effective June 28, 2001)
David T. Canon Dept. of Political Science	Glenn B. and Cleone Orr Hawkins Professor (for the period June 1, 2000- May 31, 2005);
John J. Coleman Dept. of Political Science	Glenn B. and Cleone Orr Hawkins Professor (for the period June 1, 2000- May 31, 2005);
David L. Weimer Dept. of Political Science	Glenn B. and Cleone Orr Hawkins Professor (for the period July 1, 2000- June 30, 2005);
Martine Debaisieux Dept. of French and Italian	Halverson-Bascom Professor (for the period July 1, 2000-June 30, 2003);
Christopher Kleinhenz Dept. of French and Italian	Carol Mason Kirk Professor (for the period July 1, 2000-June 30, 2003);
Mary Lydon Dept. of French and Italian	Pickard-Bascom Professor (for the period July 1, 2000-June 30, 2003).

UW-Stout: Appointment of Named Professor

Resolution 8209: That, upon recommendation of the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-Stout and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, Dr. Gour Choudhury be appointed to the Steenbock Endowed Chair, effective Semester I, 2000-01 through Semester I, 2002-03.

UW-La Crosse: Appointment of Wisconsin Distinguished Professor

Resolution 8210: That, upon recommendation of the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-La Crosse and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, James G. Wiener be appointed Wisconsin Distinguished Professor, River Studies Center, for the period January 1, 2001 through December 31, 2005.

2000-01 Education Committee Agenda

The committee discussed priorities for the 2000-01 academic year. These include: (1) the Wisconsin economy, (2) teacher education and other K-16 undergraduate partnership issues; (3) the student experience, (4) international experience; (5) access; and (6) diversity. It was emphasized that these areas are interrelated, e.g., access and teacher education are important to the Wisconsin economy, and diversity and international experience are significant components of the overall student experience for all students. This list will be finalized at the committee's October meeting. In addition, the committee agreed on the importance of : (1) specifying expected outcomes of all the discussions that we have during our committee; (2) examining what the benchmarks are for each priority area; and (3) dealing with any budget-related issues needing further development.

_

Report of the Interim Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs

Presentation: Technology and Teacher Education

Assistant Vice President for Academic Affairs, Larry Rubin, introduced the presentation on Technology and Teacher Education . Presenters were: Dana Nelson, Director of PK-16 Initiatives, UW System Administration; Nancy Kaufman, Assistant

Vice Chancellor for Graduate Studies, UW-Oshkosh; and Eileen Schroeder, Associate Professor of Education, UW-Whitewater. The UW System Task Force on Technology and Teacher Education will be charged with: 1) reviewing standards from national and professional organizations; 2) reviewing technology standards for PK-12 students; 3) collecting information on current practices in UW programs; and 4) working with the Department of Public Instruction on teacher education rules. The UW System has also established a Best Practices Task Force with three major themes: 1) proficiencies and standards for teachers; 2) faculty development; and 3) equipment and support.

Dr. Kaufman stated, in response to Regent Brandes, that access to technology across the state is "very uneven". The disparity in dissemination of available resources is significant. Regent Benson noted that annual expenditures per school district in Wisconsin range from \$6500 to \$16,000 per child.

Responding to Regent Randall, Dr. Kaufman noted that institutions are developing partnerships with communities and businesses to enhance the use of technology, but teacher development remains a major challenge.

Regent Olivieri encouraged the committee to act soon to specify what the board wants done in the area of technology. Emphasizing the importance of life-long learning, Regent Axtell expressed the hope that training in technology can serve as a model for learning in other areas. Dr. Nelson stressed that technology training should not focus on skills alone, but rather on how to use the technology to turn information into knowledge.

Intention to Recruit for Academic Deans

As stipulated in Unclassified Personnel Guidelines 5.03(4)(b), Assistant Vice President Rubin reported the following searches for academic deans: 1) UW-Milwaukee School of Education; 2) UW-Milwaukee, School of the Arts; 3) UW-Milwaukee, School of Nursing, 4) UW-Green Bay, Professional Studies and Outreach, and 5) UW-Green Bay, Liberal Arts and Sciences.

_

New Program Authorizations

The committee heard an initial review of a proposed B.S. in Applied Science, UW-Stout.

-

Revised Mission Statement, UW-Stout

Provost Robert Sedlak reviewed UW-Stout's proposed revision to its mission statement. Following a public hearing, the revision will come before the committee for final consideration.

- - -

REPORT OF THE PHYSICAL PLANNING AND FUNDING COMMITTEE

Regent James, Chair, presented the Committee's report.

The Committee and Regent President Smith met to discuss general responsibilities of the Committee in the upcoming months, and identify priorities for future meetings. These include:

- 1) Development of a policy or goals for preventive maintenance;
- 2) Feasibility of creating an endowment for building maintenance and/or equipment replacement, and;
- 3) Feasibility of establishing a revenue bonding program for university facilities.

Unanimously approved by the Physical Planning and Funding Committee were Resolutions 8211 - 8216. Regent James moved their adoption by the Board of Regents as consent agenda items. The motion was seconded by Regent Gracz and it was carried unanimously.

<u>UW-La Crosse: Authority to Construct Hutchinson Hall</u> <u>Telecommunications Cabling Project</u>

Resolution 8211: That, upon the recommendation of the UW-La Crosse Chancellor and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, authority be granted to construct a Hutchison Hall Telecommunications Cabling project at an estimated total project cost of \$132,600, using Program Revenue-Cash.

<u>UW-Madison: Authority to Construct a Memorial Union Kitchen</u> <u>Modernization Project</u>

Resolution 8212: That, upon the recommendation of the UW-Madison Chancellor and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, authority be granted to construct a Memorial Union Kitchen Modernization project, at a total estimated project cost of \$1,781,000, using Program Revenue Supported Borrowing.

<u>UW-Madison: Authority to Increase the Budget of the University Ridge</u> <u>Golf Course Clubhouse</u>

Resolution 8213 That, upon the recommendation of the UW-Madison Chancellor and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, authority be granted to increase the budget of the University Ridge Golf Course Clubhouse Improvement Project by \$100,000 (Program Revenue Cash-Athletics), for a revised total project cost of \$1,914,000 (\$1,829,000 Program Revenue Cash-Athletics and \$85,000 Gifts/Grants).

<u>UW-Stevens Point: Authority to Purchase Student Residence</u> <u>Hall Room Furnishings</u>

Resolution 8214: That, upon the recommendation of the UW-Stevens Point Chancellor and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, authority be granted to purchase Student Residence Hall Room Furnishings at an estimated total project cost of \$2,675,000 of Program Revenue Supported Borrowing.

UW-Superior: Authority to Convey Land to Superior

Resolution 8215: That, upon the recommendation of the UW-Superior Chancellor and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, authority be granted to convey approximately 1.7 acres of land to the School District of Superior for dedication to public right-of-way and transition areas between the right-of-way and a new middle school, and to adjust the campus boundary accordingly. The value of the land will be determined by appraisal.

<u>UW-Whitewater: Authority to Construct a Williams Center</u> <u>Athletic Department and HPERC Offices Remodeling Project</u>

Resolution 8216: That, upon the recommendation of the UW-Whitewater Chancellor and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, authority be granted to construct a Williams Center Athletic Department and Health, Physical Education, Recreation and Coaching (HPERC) Offices Remodeling project at an estimated total project cost of \$376,000 of Gift Funds.

Report of the Assistant Vice President

Nancy Ives, Assistant Vice President, reported that UW System projects totaling about \$5.8 million were approved at the June and August State Building Commission meetings.

-

- - -

REPORT OF THE BUSINESS AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Committee's report was presented by Regent Marcovich, Chair.

The Business and Finance Committee unanimously approved Resolutions 8217 - 8223 and moved their adoption as consent agenda items by the Board of Regents. Regent Gottschalk seconded the motion and it was carried unanimously.

<u>Report on Base Salary Adjustments to Recognize Competitive</u> Factors Required by s.36.09(1)(j), *Wis.Stats*.

Resolution 8217: That, upon the recommendation of the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the <u>Report on Base</u> <u>Salary Adjustments to Recognize Competitive Factors</u> <u>Required by Section 36.09(1)(j)</u>, Wisconsin Statutes, be accepted for transmittal to State Officials.

Regent Policy on Senior Auditors

Resolution 8218: That upon recommendation of the President of the University of Wisconsin System, Regent resolution 5658 pertaining to fee charges for class auditing adopted December 7, 1990 be rescinded and that the related Regent Policy 90-9 be hereby amended by adding the following underlined wording:

1. Audit-Only Enrollees: The academic fee charge for individual's who register for only non-credit, audit-type attendance of credit classes shall be:

Wisconsin Residents <u>under age 60:</u> 30% of the normal per credit academic fee <u>Wisconsin Residents age 60 or older: Normal percredit academic fee waived</u> (as of first day of classes) <u>Minnesota Reciprocity: 30% of the normal per-credit</u> <u>Minnesota Reciprocity fee</u> Nonresidents: 50% of the normal per credit academic fee

Audit fees shall be removed for all disabled Wisconsin residents receiving disability benefits under the Social Security Disability Insurance (SSDI) or Supplemental Income Program (SSI).

Subject to the institution's nonresident tuition remission authorization, the chancellor may waive the nonresident portion of the per credit charge for nonresidents;

The ability of a person to register only for non-credit audit-type attendance is subject to these understandings:

a. that there be no additional classroom/laboratory space requirements or increased instructional costs resulting through implementation of this policy;

b. that the approval of the faculty member in charge of the class must be obtained by the auditor;

c. that auditors receive only provisional permission to attend classes until course registration is completed at the end of the add/drop period;

d. that any special costs for course instruction other than normal tuition charges be assessed auditors availing themselves of this opportunity;

e. that a student who opts to enroll on an auditor basis under this policy may not change to a credit basis during the term of enrollment;

f. that students who later seek credit by university examination for a course that they are subject to appropriate have audited must be enrolled in the university at the time the examination is taken and tuition charge and special course fees;

g. that the UW System's general policy on the refund of academic fees will apply to audit fees;

h. <u>that each institution may determine whether to</u> <u>extend the option to auditors to pay or not pay</u> <u>segregated fees (depending on whether the individual</u> <u>wants access to segregated fee funded services). If</u> <u>segregated fees are not paid, access for individuals who</u> <u>are auditors-only is limited to the library and non-</u> <u>segregated fee funded activities of the student union.</u> <u>No additional fee shall be charged for such access;</u>

i. that Regent, university and student government regulations applying to students apply equally to audit enrollees;

- j. that the universities may determine which credit classes are open to auditors under the terms of this policy;
- 2. Degree-Seeking Students:

The ability of degree-seeking students to audit classes is subject to the academic policies of the institution. <u>Students shall pay the normal per-credit tuition for audit</u> <u>credits until the degree and audit credits equal the</u> <u>plateau where academic fees are level except that no</u> academic fee shall be assessed Wisconsin residents age 60 or older for audit-only credits. When the combination of degree and audit credits exceeds the full-time fee credit plateau, additional fees shall be assessed except that no academic fee shall be assessed Wisconsin residents age 60 or older for audit-only credits:

Subject to the institution's nonresident tuition remission authorization, the chancellor may waive the nonresident portion of the per-credit charge for nonresidents.

Blue Cross/Blue Shield: Acceptance of Funds

- Resolution 8219: That, upon the recommendation of the President of the University of Wisconsin System and the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-Madison, the Board of Regents:
 - Approves the "Agreement to Accept Grants from the Independent Foundation by the Board of Regents and the University of Wisconsin Foundation."
 - Reserves the right to give final approval to the bylaws for the oversight and advisory committee, to the name for that committee and to the operating principles referred to in the Agreement.
 - Authorizes John Torphy, Vice Chancellor of Administration, UW-Madison to sign the Agreement on behalf of the Board.

<u>Blue Cross/Blue Shield Appointment of Eight of Nine Members of an</u> <u>Advisory and Oversight Committee</u>

- Resolution 8220: That, upon the recommendation of the President of the University of Wisconsin System and the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-Madison, the Board of Regents:
 - Authorizes UW-Madison to solicit, on the Board's behalf, nominations for the oversight and advisory committee, consistent with the Commissioner's Order; and

• Directs UW-Madison to forward those nominations to the Regents, upon request, for the Regents approval.

UW-Platteville: 2000-01 Operating Budget Request Increase Parking Rates

Resolution 8221: That upon the recommendation of the UW-Platteville Chancellor and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the Board of Regents authorizes UW-Platteville to charge \$50 to students requesting a non-reserved parking permit fee for the 2000-01 year. The Board further authorizes UW-Platteville to increase the non-reserved rates for staff by \$40 above the \$35 rate approved in June 2000.

The following resolution was removed from the consent agenda at the request of Regent Olivier.

Upon motion by Regent Marcovich, seconded by Regent Gottschalk, Resolution 8222 was adopted, with Regent Olivieri abstaining from the vote.

<u>UW-Milwaukee: License Agreement with: Voicestream PCS II</u> <u>Corporation Telecorp Realty, L.L.C., by Telecorp communications Inc.,</u> <u>PrimeCo Personal Communications, Limited Partnership, d/b/a/Verizon</u> <u>Wireless and United States Cellular Operating Company d/b/a/ U.S.</u> <u>Cellular</u>

Resolution 8222: That upon the recommendation of the President of the University of Wisconsin System and the Chancellor of the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee, the Board of Regents formally approves, prior to execution, a site license respectively with Voicestream PCS II Corporation; Telecorp Realty, L.L.C., by Telecorp Communications Inc.; PrimeCo Personal Communications, limited Partnership, d/b/a/ Verizon Wireless; United States Cellular Operating Company d/b/a/ U.S. Cellular and the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee. This approval is conditional upon the State of Wisconsin Division of Facilities Development's approval of the final design, location and manner of placement of the equipment on the roof of Bolton Hall.

_

Quarterly Update

Internal Audit Director, Ron Yates, provided an overview of the major projects the office of Internal Audit is conducting. All projects are proceeding as planned.

UW-Madison's implementation of several actions to enhance its system for protecting human subjects and made various recommendations for changes in its review process.

Service Based Pricing

The Business and Finance Committee received a report on service based pricing guidelines. Service-based pricing at UW-River Falls, which is being implemented pursuant to the EM21 plan, was approved by the Board of Regents at it's meeting in June 2000. Authority to approve institutional requests to charge service-based tuition and fees for graduate and other adult programs was delegated to the System President to facilitate timely response.

In discussion at the Board meeting, Regent Olivieri asked if there would be action by the Board on service-based pricing guidelines. Regent Barry indicated that the Business and Finance Committee reviewed the guidelines and found them to be satisfactory. Regent Olivieri questioned whether service-based pricing would, for example, apply to a graduate program in which all students are under age 25. Indicating that this situation would be possible but not likely, President Lyall noted that the guidelines include authority for the chancellor to waive the fee under certain circumstances. Regent Olivieri requested that the document include explanation of the composition of funds referenced by number in the section on procedures.

In response to a question by Regent Mohs, Regent Marcovich indicated that there will be reports to the Regents on the service-based pricing that is implemented.

Regent Krutsch observed that this is an important concept and that cost recovery pricing of these types of programs allows the university to continue subsidizing other programs. She suggested that an audit, rather than simply a report, might be helpful, at a time when enough experience has been gained to provide meaningful data on such matters as cost recovery, percentage of faculty time devoted to such programs, etc.

Referring to amendment of the class audit policy (resolution #8218), Regent Barry noted that the revisions were responsive to legislative direction that seniors be allowed to audit at no charge, as long as space is available. He pointed out that possible issues remain with regard to courses for which service-based fees are charged and for distance education courses in which space arguable would always be available.

<u>Trust Funds</u>

Lori Mills, Treasury Manager, presented the annual reports on Asset Allocation and the Endowment Spending Plan. General Counsel Rindskopf-Parker discussed the legal implications of venture capital.

_

Report of the Vice President

Acting Vice President Durcan reported that total gifts, grants and contracts for the fiscal year were \$768.1 million, an increase of \$76.6 million from the previous year. Federal awards increased \$34 million, while non-federal awards increased \$42.7 million.

Report on Human Subjects

Internal Audit Director Ron Yates presented a program review on Policies and Procedures for the Protection of Human Research Subjects. The Office of Human Research Protection (OHRP) in the federal department of Health and Human Services has stepped up its on-site investigation in the past two years. Their report acknowledged UW-Madison's implementation of several actions to enhance its system for protecting human subjects and made various recommendations for changes in its review process.

Upon motion by Regent Marcovich, seconded by Regent Randall, the following resolution was adopted unanimously.

<u>Commendation to UW-Madison on Results of Federal Audit on Human</u> <u>Subjects</u>

Resolution 8223: The Board of Regents of the University of Wisconsin System commends UW-Madison for the outstanding work being done in conducting research activities involving human subjects. This research has been conducted in a manner that is respectful of individuals and minimizes possible risk of harm to individuals. Since 1997, the federal government has been very rigorous in conducting on-site investigations of the policies and procedures being followed by research institutions and has suspended federally-funded research at eight institutions across the country. A recent federal audit of UW Madison's policies and procedures by the Department of Health and Human Services Office of Human Research Protection (OHRP) confirms the outstanding manner in which UW-Madison has conducted the research. The Board of Regents congratulates UW-Madison on the successful outcome of the federal review.

- - -

EXECUTIVE SESSION

At 10:40 a.m., the Board recessed for 15 minutes. The Board reconvened in open session at 10:55 a.m., at which time the following resolution, moved by Regent Randall, was adopted on a unanimous roll-call vote, with Regents Alexander, Axtell, Barry, Benson, Boyle, Brandes, Gottschalk, Gracz, James, Krutsch, Marcovich, Mohs, Olivieri, Randall, Schneiders, and Smith (16) voting in the affirmative. There were no negative votes and no abstentions.

Resolution 8224:	That, the Board of Regents recess into Executive Session to consider appointment to the UW-Milwaukee Board of Visitors and naming facilities after persons at UW-Madison, UW-Stevens Point, UW-Stout and UW- Whitewater, as permitted by S.19.85(1)(f), <i>Wis. Stats.</i> , to consider a salary adjustment, UW System Administration as permitted by S.19.85(1)(c), Wis. <i>Stats.</i> , and to confer with Legal Counsel, as permitted by S.19.85(1)(g). <i>Wis. Stats</i>
	by S.19.85(1)(g), Wis. Stats.

The Board arose from executive session at 11:50 a.m., having adopted the following resolutions:

Appointment to UW-Milwaukee Board of Visitors

Resolution 8225: That, upon the recommendation of the University of Wisconsin-Milwaukee Chancellor and the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the following persons be appointed to the UW-Milwaukee Board of Visitors for terms ending in August 2003:

> Re-appointments: Kathleen Huston Karma Rodgers Fran Swigart

Terri Weiland Ge Xiong

New appointments: Robert H. Coons, Jr. Jane Schneider Art Smith Joanne Williams

<u>University of Wisconsin System: Approval of Salary: Vice President for</u> <u>Finance</u>

Resolution 8226: That upon the recommendation of the President of the University of Wisconsin System, the salary for Deborah Durcan as Vice President for Finance, be set at an annual rate of \$130,000, effective September 1, 2000.

The meeting was adjourned at 11:50 a.m.

Judith A. Temby, Secretary